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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of TCL Cables Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TCL Cables Private Limited (“the

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive
income) , changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

w

Basis for Opinion

3. Weconducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Bthics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information incluided in the Board report, but does not include the
financial statemenis and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

“We have nothing to report in this regard.

P PR

e TS AN
i PIRAIRAEET N
oy |
i)

pan ’% . =
AN e
() (\/f\
\'@ ??9?;’.7’,4 g-ul-l-;,? 3 “/
. a8 T

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, 1701, 17th Floor, Shapath V, Opp. Karnavati Club, § G Highway
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India
T, +91 (79) 3091 7000, F: +91 {79) 3091 7082

A

Registerad office and Head offlce: 11-4, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, Gala No 2, 1st Floor, New Delhi - 110002

Frice Walarhouse (a Partnership Firm) convertad into Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP {a Limited Lisblity Parinsrship with LLP identity no: LLPIN AAC-5001)
wth effect from July 26, 2014. Posi its conversion to Price Waterhouge Charterad Accountants LLP, lts 1ICAE registration number is 012764N/NEDOOTS ICA| reyisiration
number bsfore conversion was 012754N)




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of TCL Cables Private Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Pagezof 5

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

5, The Company’s Board of Directors is respensible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and-cash flows-of the Company -
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting recoxds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

&

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to igsue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable agsurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can avise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresenlalions, ur the override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectivencss of such controls.
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¢ Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies vsed and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

~ accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material unceriainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosutes, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10.As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs g and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
$o far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. :

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
Mareh 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A", ' '
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 35(a) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2022 under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foresceable
losses on long-term coniract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2022,

fii. ‘There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, zoz2.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, 10 the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or _
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sourees or :
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including '
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
Iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 48 (k)(i) to
the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons ot entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 48 (k){ii) to the financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. { :
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12. The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year ended

March 31, 2022, Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 046521
UDIN: 22046521A1QYPA0633

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the At !

1. We have aundited the internal financial controls with reference to finaneial statements of TCL Cables
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2, The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls bascd on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of interrial control stated in the Guidarnce Note on Audit of
Internal Finaricial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"}. These responsibilities include the design, *
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finaneial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsthility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was cstablished and maintained and if sach controls operated effectively in all material
respects. ‘

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statemeats and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to fiancial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finaneial veporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inchudes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
veceipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial

siatements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected, Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
staternents may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
cornpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
System with reference to financial statements and such internal financial cantrols with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 046521
UDIN: 22046521A1QYPA9633

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022
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i, (a) (A)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment,

(B)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme; a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been
physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on sich verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company-
examined by us, the Comnpany does not own any immovable properties (other than properties -
whére the Company is the lessce and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) ns disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

{d) The Company has chosen cost madel for its property, Plant and Equipment (incJuding Right of
Use assets) and intangible asscts. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether
the revatuation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of
change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not
arise.

(2) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1088 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in its financial statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties has been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the Management duying the year and, in oux opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate, In respect of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed
on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the quarterly
returns or statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company
does not arise.
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iii. (a) The Company granted unsecured loans to other parties, The aggregate amount during the year,

iv,

and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans to parties are as
per the table given below:

{Rs, in lakhs)
Loans
Aggregate amount during the year
= Others 8.10
Balance outstanding as a balance sheet
date
- QOthers 643

(Also refer Note 7 and Note 15 to the financial statements)

() In respect of the aforesaid loans the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted
are not prejudicial 1o the Company’s interest,

{c) Inrespect of the aforesaid loans the schedule of repayment of principal and interest has been
stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal amounts, and is also regular in payment
of interest as applicable as stipulated as applicable,

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety
days,

(e) There were no loans were granted to same parties and which fell due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue
loans.

(f) There were noloans/advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year to
promoters/related parties,

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

The Company has not dccepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed
there under to the extent notified,
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vi,

vil. {a}

)]

Pursuant to the rules made by the Centra) Government of India, the Company is required to
mairtain cost records as specified under Section 148(1} of the Act in respect of its services, We
have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination.of the records with a view to determine. whethea they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of employees’ state insurance and provident fund, though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including, income tax, duty of customs, cess, value added tax, service tax, sales tax, goods and
services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
Also, refer note 35 (a) to the financial statements regarding management's assessment on
certain matters relating to provident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, cess, service-tax, goods and services tax, duty
of customs, whlch have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited
on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where the
the statute | dues involved unpaid which the dispute is pending
(Rs. in lakhs) | (Rs. inlakhs) | amount
relates
Gujarat Value Added 21.00 17.00 | 2013-14 & Joint Commissioner of
Value Tax 2014-15 Comimercial Tax
Added Tax (Appeal)
Act,
2003 GVAT Tribunal
17.00 14,00 | 2011-12
Joint Commissioner of
5.00 | 2016-17 Commercial Tax
10.00 {Appeal)
Gujarat Sales tax 420.00 429.00 | 200203 & Joint Commissioner of
Sales Tax 2003-04 Commercial Tax
Act, 1969 {Appeal)

J R PP
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Naine of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where the
the statute | dues involved unpaid whichi the dispute is pending
’ (Rs. inlakhs) { (Rs. inlakhs) | amount
relates
Central Central Sales 288.00 220.00 | 2008-04, GVAT Tribunal
Sales Tax | Tax 2000-10,
Act, 1056 2010-11,
2011-12 &
2012-13
4G.00 30.00 | 201415 Joint Commissioner of
Commercial Tax
(Appeal)
GVAT Tribunal
175.00 140.00 | 2015-10
2016-17
2017-18
viii,  According tothe information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

ix. {a)

(b}

(c)

()

(e)

examined by us, there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the hooks of
account,

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained,

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year and accordingly, reporting under this Clause is not applicable,
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)]
% ()
{b)

xi. (a)

)

()

Xit,

xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year and accordingly, reporting under this Clause is not applicable.

The Company has not 1aised any money by way of initial public offer orfurther public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management:

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, was not required to be filed. Accordingly, the reporting under clause a{xi){b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Puring the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Compary and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
veporting under clause 3{xif) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not
required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this
extent, the reporting under clause g(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv, (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has

(b)

an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

By
AN .
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xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xvi. {(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
- Act, 1934, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. _

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clanse 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d} Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group has one CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete,

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,008.62 lakhs in the financial year and of Rs.
1,149.41 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xvii) is not applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 47 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance ,
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, t
however, state that this is not an asstrance as to the future viability of the Company. We
turther state that our reporting is based on the facts up t¢ the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all labilities falling due within a period of

one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fali
due.




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexutre B to Independent Avditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of TCL
Cables Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 :
Page 7 of 7

XX, The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Company,

xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(kxi) of the Oxder is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number; 012754N/N500016

Viren Shah

Partner

Membership Number 046521
UDIN : 22046521A1QYPA9633 ‘

Place: Ahrnedabad
Date: May 09, 2022







TEL Cables Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Capital work-in-progress
Other intangible assets
Financial assets
. .Loans
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current tax sssets (net)
Other non~-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than eash and cash equivalents
Loans
Qther financial assets
Other current assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Habilities
Borrowings
Lease Habilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other current Habilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

See the accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 012754N / Nooo16

Viren Shah

Partner
Membership No.: 046521

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May o9, 2022

Note

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

4 4,183.44 4,603.78
5 770.84 858.94
4A 13.45 -
6 - 5.09
7 1.32 1.29
8 116,27 106,27
34 799.21 189.35
9 49.02 10.48
10 375.68 429.87
6,300.23 6,205.07
1 9,743.15 6,370.14
iz 11,002.97 10,904.21
13 410.52 373.33
14 213.23 190.77
LI7 4.81 -
16 150.57 154.03
17 1,483.94 248.32
23,000,19 18,240.80
29,318.42 24,445.87
18 4,200.00 200,00
19 (3,544.37) (1,610.34)
655.63 (1,410.34)
20 22.745.26 21,570.26
a7 . 722.85 748.31
23,468.11 22,318.5%
21
336.61 127.69
3,249.41 2,253.40
34 100.82 125.47
22 598.07 506.84
23 474.59 141.89
24 434.50 378.67
25 - 0,68 0.68
. 5,104.68 3,537.64
29,318.42 24,445.87

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Nandish Joshi
Company Secretary

Jayesh Desai Varun Mehta
Chairperson Director
DIN : 02295309 DIN ; 07862034

Place: Ahmedabad  Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022 Date: May og, 2022

Place; Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022



‘TCL Cables Private Lanited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified}

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total incone

Expenses

Cost of materials consamed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs -

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Tatal expenses

Loss before tax for the year

Tax expense

Curreni tax

Deferred tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that wilk not be veclassified to profit or foss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

Tax relating to remeasurement of the defined benefit pians
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Harning per Share of face value of Rs. 10 each (in Rs,)

See the accompanying notes forming part of the finaneial statements

Note

26
27

28

9
30
31
32
33

34
34

38
34

40

- B

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, zo21
44,728,74 24,296.87
27.73 110.57
44,756.49 24.407.44
39,404.29 19,047.07
- 361,03
(1,183.67) 604.36
2,391.87 2,144.56
1,876.59 g
716,20 712,34
4,087.20 2,277.81
47,292.48 25,575.45
(2,535.99) (1,168.01)
(6072.87) (212.82)
(607.87) - - (212.82)
(1,928.12) {955.19)
{7.90) 94.76
1,99 (23.85)
(5.91} 70,91
1,934.03) {884.28)
(12.46) {4776}

In terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Numher : 0127548 / Nsooo16

Viren Shah
Partner
Membership No,; 046521

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Jayesh Desai
Chairperson
DIN': o2295309

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 00, 2022

Varun Mehta
Director
DIN : 07862034

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

Nandish Josli
Company Secretary

Place: Ahimedabad
Date: May 09, 2022



“ICL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows fer the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless atherwise specified)

Year Ended Year Ended
March g1, 2022 March 31, 2031
Cush flow from operating activities
Net ioss before tax (2,535.99) {1,168.01)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 716,20 TI2.54
Provisicn of earlier years written back - (22.09)
Provisicns for deubtfus debts no Jonger required 861.27 (664.49)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.45 (17.60)
Bad debts written off {net of recovery) (16.86) 473.91
Finance costs 1,810.29 411,21
Interest on lease linbility £6.29 17-067
Interest income {9.57) {33.62)
Net gain arising on current investments in mutual funds measured at fair value - 6.74)
through profit or loss :
Operating loss before working capital changes 896,08 {298.02)
Movement in working capitals
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets;
Inventaries (3,373.01) (243.14)
Trade receivables (94317) 4,930.46
Loans {4.84) (1.29)
Cther financial assets (6.57) {33.68)
Other assets (1,198.a6) 19467
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 1,204.93 321.95
Other financial Habilities 42.90 {68.82)
Provisions 47.92 191.59
Other Habilities a32.71 (298.11)
Cash flow (used in)/ from operations (3.001.41) 4,565,060
Taxes paid (net) {38.54) (10.48)
Net cash flow (used in)/ from operating activities {3,039.95) 455512
Cagh flow from investing activities
Payments for property, piant and equipment and intangible assets {201.20} {249.93)
Proeseds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets 5.28 1805
Tnvestments in bank deposits (net) (maturity more than three months) (27.16) .77)
Interest received 9,57 33.62
Cansideration paid for acquisition of Cable Business Undertaking - {25,695.00)
Proceeds from current investments {net} - 10976
Net eash used in investing activities (213,60} (25.694,37)
Casls flow from financing activities
Praceed from issue of Share Capital 4,800.00 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 14,825.00 22,920.27
Repayment of leng-term borrowings (13,650.00) (650.00)
Finance costs paid (1,767.87) (76.7.4)
Lease rent payment {116.40) {24.25)
Net cash flow from financing nctivitles 3,290,73 21,469,28
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3718 330,04
Cash and cash equivalents as ot beginning of the year 373.32 9.38
Cash and cash equivalents acquived as part of Cahle Business Undertaking - 33.90
(Refer Note 49)
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 410.50 573.32
Year Ended ‘Year Ended
March 31, zoz2z March 31, 2021
a) Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year

Balances with banks

Balance in current accounts 4l0.53 373-33

410.52 373.33

b) "The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method" set out in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) - 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" .

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 1LY
Firm Registration Number : 012754N / N5o0016

Viren Shaoh
Partner
Membership No.: 046521

Flace: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors

Jayesh Desal Varun Mehta Nandish Joshi
Chairpersen Director Company Secretary
DIN : p2205309 DIN : 07862034

Place: Ahmedabad  Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May ag, 2022 Date: May 09, 2022 Date: May 04, 2022



TCL Cables Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Rs, i Lakhs, unless atherwise specified}

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 19)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Balance as at March 31, zo21 200.00 200.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 4,000,00 -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,200,000 200.00
B. Other equity (Refer note 20)
Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings Capital Reserve Total

Balance as at April 01, 2020 0.04 - 0.94
Loss for the year (955.10) - (955.19)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 20,01 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the year (884.28) - (884.28)

Capital reserve due to scheme of arrangement (Refer nate 46) - (7277.00) {727.00)

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (883.34) {727.00) {1,610.34)
Balance as at April 01, 2021 (883.34) (727.00) {1,610.34)
Loss for the year (1,928.12) - (1,928.12)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans (5.01) - (5.91)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,934.03) - (1,934.03)
Balance as at March 31, zo22 (2,817.37) (727.00) (3,544.37)

Cumulative balances of ¥ (65.00 lakhs ) (March 31, 2021 ¥ 70.91 lakhs) related to re-measurement of defined benefit plans.,
In terms of our report attached
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number : 012754N / N500016
Viren Shah Jayesh Desai Varun Mehta Nandish Joshi
Partner Chairperson Director Company Secretary

Membership No.: 046521

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

DIN : 02295309

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

DIN: 07862034

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 09, 2022



TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 1: General information

TCL Cables Private Limited (“the Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Torrent Power
Limited. The Company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is
located at Yoginagar, Mission Road, Nadiad-387002.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of Cables and related services.

Note 2: Significant accounting policies

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation:
Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are in compliance, in all material aspects, with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act
and rules made thereunder.

As prescribed by the Ind AS, if the particular Ind AS is not in conformity with the applicable laws,
the provisions of the said law shall prevail and financial statements shall be prepared in conformity
with such laws. Consequently, the Company has applied this norm while preparing the financial
statements.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost
convention except for following which have been measured at fair value;

- Defined benefit plan assets

All assets and Habilities have been classified as current or non-current as set out in the Schedule IIT
(Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013,

Property, plant and equipment:
Tangible fixed assets

All other items of property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.,

Capital work in progress in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes is carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, Cost includes purchase price, taxes
and duties, labour cost and other directly attributable costs incurred upto the date the asset is ready
for its intended use. Such property, plant and equipment are classified to the appropriate categories
when completed and ready for intended use.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Subsequent costs relating
to day to day servicing of the item ave not recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment; rather, these costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. '

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.3

2.4

2.5:

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation for the year
is provided on additions / deductions of the assets during the period from / up to the month in
which the asset is added / deducted. Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period in respect of tangible assets. The effect of any such change in estimate in this regard
is accounted for on a prospective basis,

Class of Assets Ufﬁ;u 1
Buildings 60
Plant and machinery 15
Electrical fittings and 10
apparatus
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office Equipment 5

Intangible assets — acquired:

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 years.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and the effect of any changes in such estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no fature economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets :

Tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in
use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit, An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. :

Business combination — common control transaction

Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are accounted for
using the pooling of interests method as follows:

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

- No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assels or light
Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies. /




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2,6

277

2.8

@

(i)

2.9

- The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated
as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where the
business combination had cccurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only
from that date. '

- The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor
is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee
or is adjusted against general reserve.

- The identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the
reserves of the transferee. . ‘ '

- The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves.

Business combination-related costs are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incurred,

Cash and cash equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, cheques / drafts on hand, current account balances with banks and other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.
Inventories:

Raw materials, fuel, stores and spares, packing materials, loose tools, work in progress, traded and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or realisable value. Cost of inventories includes
purchase price and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the weighted average basis Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized, when the control of the goods or services has been transferred to customers
net of discounts and other similar allowances.

Sales of cables recognised, net of returns and rebates, on transfer of control of ownership to the
buyer. Sales exclude Goods and Services Tax.

Revenue from contracts with customers for cable lying services is recognized at the point
in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Foreign currency translation:
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian rupee (INR) which is functional as well as
presentation currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the

entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailj
at the dates of the transactions, £
o




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2,11

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
Statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange differences arising on
settlement of monetary items or on reporting the Company’s monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the financial year are recognized ag income or
expense in the financial year in which they arise.

Employee benefits:
Defined contribution plans

Contributions to retirement benefit plans in the form of provident fund, employee state insurance
scheme, pension scheme and superannuation schemes as per regulations are charged as an expense
on an accrual basis when employees have rendered the service. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Defined benefits plans

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the retirement benefit plan ie.
gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an actuary using
projected unit credit method. '

"The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated

future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets. This cost is included in the employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur and consequently
recognised in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss,

The retirement benefit recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Habilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit eredit method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or losg,eeee,




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2,12

2.13

The said obligations are presented as current labilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Taxation:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on estimated taxable income for the year in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations for which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are offset with each other when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset and balances arise with the same tax authority.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deduetible temporary differences, unused tax
lIosses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax labilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Earnings per share:




TCIL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.14

2.15

it)

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Contingent liability

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the enterprise are disclosed as contingent liability and not provided for. Such liability is
not disclosed if the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Financial instruments;
Financial assets
Classification of financial assets (including debt instrumentis)

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Initial measurement




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

iii,

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement

There are three measurement categories into which the debt instruments can be classified:
e Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains / (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains and losses and impairment expenses in
other expenses.

e Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through

profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains / (losses) in the period in
which it arises. Net gains / (losses) from these financial assets is included in other income.

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 only, the Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss and always measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables,
the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 i.e. expected credit loss
allowance as computed based on historical credit loss experience.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
finanecial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

When the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. #0
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vi)

2.16

i)

i)

iii;]

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control over the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Financial liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.
Classification :

All the Company’s financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
Initial measurement

Financial liabilities are initally measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liabilities are deducted from the fair value of the financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Fffective Interest Rate
Method,

The Effective Interest Rate Method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability

iv) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or waived off or have expired. An exchange between the Company and the
lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases:

Company as a lessee:

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components.

Lease liabilities:
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments).

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments
are allocated between principal and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets:

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and lease payments made before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use agse
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adj




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the asset’s lease term on a straight line basis.
Short term leases and leases of low value assets:

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss, Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment
including I'T equiprment.

217 Amount presented and rounding off:

All amounts in the financial statements and notes have been presented in ¥ Lakhs (except for share data)
rounded to two decimals as per the requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, unless
otherwise stated.

' Note 3: Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under note 2 above, the management of the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of
assets and labilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant,
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Such estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future
periods.

3.1 Taxes:

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies, including estimates of temporary differences reversing on account of available
benefits from the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets for unused tax credits that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits [Refer note 35]

3.2 Contingent labilities

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult
to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are
not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognized nor disclosed as contingent
liability. The management judgement is involved in classification under ‘remote’, ‘possible’ or ‘probable’
which is carried out based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.

3.3 Employee benefit plans:

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits
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The present value of obligations under defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefils is
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary escalations, attrition rate and mortality rates Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, these obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Information about the various
estimates and assumptions made in determining present value of defined benefit obligation are
disclosed in note 39
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Note 4t Property, pisntand equipment

As at Morch 31, 2022

Gross canying emouat Accumulated depreelation et carnying
smount
Particulars Asat Additions Deductions Adjustment Asat Asgt For Dedoctions Adjustment Asal Asat
apdion, during the during e Mazhan, Apiil o, The Quring lhe Merch 43, March 31,
2021 year yesr 2022 20m year vear woge 2022
Buildings 109600 LT - - 1,007.05 125.16 1Z7.30 - - 256.46 4,740.59
Flant and machinery B424.37 13058 og - 554392 84681 459.60 534 - 4,30L05 22428}
Eledrica! fittlngs and apparstus 94.23 592 - - 10836 45.61 546 - - sLap Ag.09
Pumilure and fvtires 6195 a75 - - 8770 2375 L3218 - - 2586 ARy
Vehicled 2599 L6 Ba7 - 42.41 1536 285 so1 - B 2030
Cfflen equipment 14641 4945 - - 19386 BG.64 ELTY I - - 1zt 7375
Total B.751.01 26246 16,91 = B.947.00 444723 428,78 1087 L3 A,26840 Ayt 44
Hates: ’
M Caplizl commitment:
Mofer bole a5(h) for discl i for the seguisiten of property, plant and equipmenl.
(if) Refer note 46(d) for Etle deed of immovable property.
As gt March 31, za21
Grass carrylig amount Accumulated depreelation Netaarmying
Particulars Asat Transfer dus 10 Additions | Deductions | Adjustment Asat Asal Transler due v Far Tredudions Adjusiment Asot Asmt
Apsilor, Seheraal duringthe duripg the March 31, Aprlos, Schemeof . Uhe duging Lhe Marchgs, Atarch 3y,
2020 arrangement year year 21l 20720 ammangement year Impatrment year 202t 20a1
(Refer Nate 40) {Refee Yote 40)
Thaildings - 1,864 88 5255 - oR63 1,096.06 - {a.00} 120 - - 1196 12916 1,866.00
Flanl ond machinery - 6,361.09 90.20 26.92 - 6424 37 - 33540 51834 - 2557 - 2,446.81 L577.56
Electrical Fltings and apparatus - L% 146 - - 5423 - 446 515 - - - 4561 4B.62
Puminge and fornsres - A4z 128 - 425 63.95 - 1641 Sz - - LX) 2175 {030
Vehicies - 2599 . - - 2599 - 255 27 - - - 1526 w07
Offioe exquipraent - L1280 361 - - 14641 - 645 2246 B - - 8664 Eer
[Tutal = 8,545:95 71 2692 10288 8,751.00 2 148262 7231 - 2557 12,87 404723 4,601.78
Noles:
(i} Capital commitment:
Refer nots 35{b} for disdosure of d ke acquisition of property. plant end
(i) Rtefer note 48(a) for Hike deed ofimmorable property,
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note - 4A : Capital Work in Progress

As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars As at Additions Capitalised Adjustment As at

April 01, during the during the 31st March

2021 year year 2022

Capital work-in-progress - 144.03 130.58 - 13.45

Total - 144.03 130.58 - 13.45

As at 31st March, zo21

Particulars As at Additions Capitalised Adjustment As at

April o1, during the during the Mayxch 31,

2020 period period 2021
Capital work-in-progress - - - - -
Total - - - - -

‘Note :
Refer Note 44 for CWIP aging.
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 51 Right-of-use assets

As at March 31, 2022

G m A ulated d iati
ross carTying amoimnt ccumulated depreciation Mot carvving amennt
Particulars As at Additions Deduclions Asat Asat Yar Deductians Asat Asat
April 0y, during the during the March g1, April 01, the year during the March 3¢, March g1,
2p2s vear year 2022 2021 year 2022 2022
Land 880.96 - - 880.96 2z2.02 88.10 - 1oz 770.84
Total 880.96 - - 880.06 22.02 88.10 “ 110,12 770,84
Notes:
Refer note 37 for disclosuse relating fo right-cf-use asset.
As at March 31, 2021
Graoss carrying amounnt Accumulated depreciation Nele —
Particulars Asat Additiona Deductions Asat Asat Fer Deductions Asat Asat
. Aprif o1, during the during the Masch 31, April o1, the year during the March 31, Masch 35,
2020 year year 2021 2020 year 2021 2021
land - 880.96 - 880.96 - 22.02 - 22,02 858,94
Total - 880.96 - 880.96 - 22,02 - 22.02 858,94

Notes:
Refer note 37 for disclosure relating to right-of-use asset,
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Notes forming part of the Guancinl statemenis for the year ended March gt, 2022

{All amounis in Rs. in Lakhs, unless ctherwise specified}
Nate 6: Other intangilile assets )

As st March 31, zo2z2

Gruss carrylng anownt Accumulated amortization N"tl:"::n’ :"5
al
Perticulars Asal Additions Deductions | Adlustments As ol Axat Ter Deductons Adjustiments Asat Asat
Apzilar, during Lhe durlng the Murch, 31 April 01, the Year during Lke Maorch, g March,:
2021 Year Year 2023 2021 Year 2022 2022
Computer soflware 8274 - Rz.74 - - 7266 132 78.97 - - -
Total 82,74 - 82.74 - - R 1.4% 78,97 - “ -
As at March 31, zoa1
Gross carrylng smount Accumulated amortization et carcying
amount
Partieulars Asat Transfer due Lo AddiLs: Do Ad} As ot Asat Transfer due to Yor Deductions Adjustments® Asal Asat
Apriles, Scheme of doringthe | Quringthe Mozeh a1, Aptil 01, Scheme of the year during the Marchal, March i,
2020 arrangement year year 2023 2070 arrangement yaar 2021 upR
{Refer Nole 40) {Refex Nele 409)
Computer soflware - B2.62 GI0 - 0.02 Baoq - 72.50 534 - 002 7265 500
i Total - 82,62 0:£0 - .02 fAz2.74 - 7L50 Held - 002 266 A1)
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless othertwise specified)

Note 7: Non Current Loans
Unsecured (considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Loan to Employees

Note 8: Other Non Current financial assets

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

L32

1.29

1.32

1.29

As at As at
Unsecured (considered good unless stated otherwise) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposits 116,27 106,27
116,27 106,27

Note 9: Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (Net of provision Rs. Nil as on March 31,2022
and Rs. Nil as on March 31, 2021)

Note 10: Other non-current assets
Unsecured (considered goed, unless stated otherwise)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

46.02

10,48

49.02

10.48

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Capital advances 8.53 25.46

Balances with government authorities 459.28 404.41

Prepaid expenses .87 -
375.68 429.87




TCL Cables Private Limited
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{All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 11: Inventories As at
(valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) March 31, 2oz

As at
March 31, 2021

Raw materials 5,:251.42 3,622,65
Goods- In-"Transit - Raw Material 392,25 -
Work-in-progress 995.64 636.18
Finished goods 1,575.00 1,522.76
Goods- In- Transit -Finished Goods 1,057.31 286.24
Pacldng materials 236.94 117,29
Stores and spares 212,49 164.77
Loose tools . - 0.60
Fuel . . 21.30 19.65

9,743.15 6,370.14

Note 12: Trade receivables As at As at

March 31, 2oz2

March 31, 2021

Trade receivables

Unsecured - Considered good 11,002.97 10,904.21
- Credit impaired 861,27 -
11,864.24 -
Tess: Allowance for bad and doubtful debis 861,27 -
11,002.97 10,904.21
Refer note 45 for ageing schedule of {rade receivables.
Nete 131 Cash and cash equivalents . As at As at
March 31, 2022 March g1, 2021
Balances with banks
Balance in current accounts 410,52 373.33
410.52 373.33
Note 14t Bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March g1, 2021
Unpaid dividend accounts 3.08 7.78
Balance in fixed deposit accounts# 210,15 182.99
(maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months)
213.23 190.77

#ahove balance is under Hen with GST/VAT authority of Gujarat

Note 15: Current Loans As at Asgat
Unsecured (considered good unless stated otherwise) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loan to Employees 4.81 -
4.81 -
Note 16: Other Current financial assets Asat As at
Unsecured (considered good unless stated otherwise) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposits 85.22 13144
Other advances 1,55 1.40
Receivabie from Life Insurance Corporation 63.80 2119
150.57 154.03
Note 17: Other current assets
Unsecured (considered good unless stated otherwise)
As at As at
March g1, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advances for goods and services 847.13 206.53
Balances with government authovities 616.12 22,00
Prepaid expenses 20,69 19.70
1,483.94 248.32
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Note 18: Equity share eapital

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 41, 2021

Authorised
12,70,00,000 equity shares {March 31, 20211 12,70,00,000 equily shares) of Rs.t0 each 12,700.00 12,700.00
12,700.00 12,700.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
4,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. s0 each (March 31, 2021 20,060,000 Shares} 4,200.00 200.00
4,200,000 200,80
. . . No. of shares No. of shares
| Recondiliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year: .. Asat Agat .
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At the beginning of the year 200.00 200.00
Issued during the year 4,000.00 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,200.00 200,00

2  Shares held by holding company:
420,00,000 equity shares (Mazch 31, 2021 20,00,000 Shares) of Rs.10 each fully paid up, are held by holding company - Torrent Power Limited

jointly with nominees.

5 Terms / Rights aitached to equity shares:

The Company bas only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share: Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
rupees. The dividend,if any, proposed by the Beard of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharebolders in the ensuing Anrual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares wili be entitled to receive remaiaing assets of the Company, after distribution of preferentiat amounts. The distribution will be in

proportior to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

4 Details of shareholders holding more than £% shares in the Company:

Asat
March 31, zo22

Name of the Shareholder

Asgat

Mavch 31, 2021

No, of shares % holding No, of shaves 9% holding
Torrent Power Limited {Jeintly with 420,00,000 100.00% 20,00,000 100.00%
nominees)

5  Details of sharehelding of Promoters in the Company
Asat As at
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2022 March g1, 2021
% changes during % changes % changes during the
No. of shares % of total shares the year during the year % of total shares year
100.06% - 20,00,000 100.00% -

Torrent Power Limited (Jointly with 420,00,000

nominees)
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Note 19: Other equity As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Reserves and surplus

Capital reserve due to scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 49) {727.00)

(727.00)
Retained earnings (2,817.37) (883.39)
(3,544.37) (1,610.34)

Retained earnings includes ¥ (65.00 lakhs ) (March 31, 2021 T 70.91 lakhs) related to re-measurement of defined benefit plans.

Retained earnings:

The retained earnings reflect the profit of the company earned till date net of appropriations. The amount that can be distributed by the Company as
dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the balance in this reserve, after considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital reserve due to scheme of arfangement:

It arises on transfer of business between entities under commeon control. It rvepresents the surplus of consideration over book value of net assets acquired.
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note zo: Non Current Borrowings As at As at
' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unsecured loans
Loan from Pavent Company (Refer note 42} . 22,745.26 21,570,206
22,745.26 21,570.26
Note!

The repayment will start from F.Y.26-27 in 60 equal monthly instalments out of the cashflow of the company. Torrent Power Limited (Parent Company) and the Company
may extend or modify the terms of the Lepayment with mutual agreement, The Company may make the prepayment,n’re -draw the loan upto the sanctioned amount during
the course of the facility.

Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the periods presented:

As at Agat
g1st March, zo22 318t March, 2021

Cash and cash eqmvalents : - 410,52 373.33
Non-current borrowings {including current maturities and interest accrued and due) (23,122,17) (21,904.74)
Lease liabilities - (823.67) (873.78)

{23,535.32) (22,405.19)

Net Debt Reconciliation:
Other assels Liabilities from financing activities Total
Cash and cash Current Nan-current Lease liabilities
equivalents investments borrowings
Net balance as at April 1, 2020 9.38 193.02 - - 202,40
Cash flows 363.95 {199.76) {21,570.27) - {21,406.07)
New lease - - - (B80.96) (880.96)
Interest expense - - (361.73) (17.07) (378.80)
Interest Payment (gross of TDS) - - 297,25 - 27,285
Rent accrued - - - 24.25 24.25
Gain on sale of current investments - 6,74 - - 6,74
Net balance as at March 31, 2021 373.33 {0.00) (21,904.75) (873.78) (22,405.19)
Cash flows 3719 - {1,175,00) {1,137.81)
Interest expense - - {1,749.12) {66.2g) (1,815.41)
Interest payment {gross of TDS) - - 1,706,69 - 1,706.60
Rent Payment - - - 116.40 116.40
Net halance as at March 31, 2022 410,52 {0.00) (23,122.18) {823.67) (23,535.32)
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Note 21: Trade payables

Trade payables for goods and services
Total ouistanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 36)
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises

Refer note 46 for ageing schedule of current tiade payables,

Note 22: Other Current financial liabilities

Interest acerued and dute on Parent Company loan

Unpaid / Unclaimed dividend#

Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment®
Sundry payables {including for employees related payables)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

336.61 127,69
3:249.41 2,253.40
3,586.02 2,381.09
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
376.91 334.48
3.08 7.78
16,20 8.61
20188 158.97 -
598.07 500.84

# There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to investor edueation and protection fund as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

~ including dues to micro and small enterprises for Rs. 6.01 Lakhs {(March 31, 2021 -Rs, 6.51 Lakhs)

Note 23: Other current liabilities

Credit balance of customer (Refer Note 50)
Statutory dues

Note 24: Current Provisions
Provision for employee henefits
Provision for gratuity [Refer note 38.2 {a)]
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for indirect taxes

Note 25: Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation (net of tax paid of Rs. Nil March, 2022 and Rs. Nil March 31, 2021))

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
383.10 76.25
91,49 62.64
474.59 - 141.89
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
142.37 71.58
266,80 281,76
409.17 353.34
95,33 2533
25.33 25.33
434,50 378.67
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
0.68 0.68
0.68

a.68
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Note 26: Revenue from operations

Revenue from sale of cable product

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Manufactured Goods 44,050.17 23,736.09
Traded Goods - 361.03
Revenue from Cable laying service 214,98 -
44,265.15 24,0972
Less: Discount for prompt payment - 0.47
' ' 44,265.15 24,096.65
Other operating income
Insurance claim receipt 3.27 -
Recovery of bad debts 17.35 “
Scrap sales 442.97 200,22
463.59 200.22
44,728.74 24,206.87
Note 27: Other income Year ended Year ended

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Deposits Q.57 13.21
Others - 20.41
9.57 33.62

Gain on disposal of propeity, plant and equipment - 17.60
Gain on sale of current investments in mutual funds - 6.74
Net gain on foreign eurrency transactions 14.08 18,05
Miscellaneous income 4.10 14.56
27.75 110.57
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 28: Cost of materials consumed

Cost of materials consumed

Note 29: Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Finished goods
Opening stock
Add: Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 49)
Less: Closing stock

Work-in-progress
Opening stock .
Add: Fransfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 49)
Less: Closing stock

Note 30: Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer note 38.13
Compensated ahsences

Gratuity [Refer note 38.2(a)}

Employees welfare expenses

Note 31: Finance costs

Interest expense for financiat Habilities classified as amortised cost
Loan from Parent Company (Refer note 42)
Leage liabilities

Other burrowing cost

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
39,404.29 19,047.07
39,404.240 19,047.07
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,809,600 -
- 2,312.79
2,633.21 1,809.00
(824.21) 503.79
636.18 -
- 736.75
995.64 636.18
(359.46) 100.57
(1,183.67) 604.36
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,065.23 1,788.25
186.73 169,17
45.06 48.35
52.37 48.31
142.48 90,48

2,391.87 2,144.56

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,749.12 361.73
66.29 17.07
61.17 49.48

1,876.50 428,28
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Note g2: Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Depreciation expense on praperty, plant and equipment
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Amortization expense on intangible assets

Note 33: Other expenses

626.78 685.18
88.10 22,02
1.32 5.14
916,20 712,94
Year ended Year ended

March 31, zo22

March 31, 2021

Consumption of stores and spares 283,22 230,12
Repairs to
. Buildings o 17.09 19.52
Plant and machinery 103.82 38.41
Others 25.04 10.50
145.95 68.43
Insurance 58.36 54.11
Rates and taxes 218.26 43.48
Vehicle running expenses 14,19 6.52
Electricity expenses 763.16 574.08
Contract Labour Charges 415.98 334.28
Security expenses 860.94 91.33
Loss on sale / discarding of property, plant and equipment 4.45 -
Freight & Forwarding Expense 532.70 623.35
Registration and Stamp Charges 260.49 97.94
Auditors remuneration [Refer note 39] 3.50 0.50
Legal, professional and consultancy fees 36.20 46.19
Bad debts written off 0.49 473.91
Aliowance for doubtful debts (net} 861,27 (664.49)
Miscellaneous expenses 402.04 298.06
4,087.20 2,277.81
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Note 34: Income iax expense

(a)

(b)

{c)

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year

Deferred tax (other than that disclosed under OCI)
(Increase) / decrease in deferred tax assets
Increase/ (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities

Income tax expense

Reconciliation of income tax expense

Loss before tax
Expected income tax expense calculated using tax rate at 25.168% (Previous
year - 25.168%)

Adjustment to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported
ineome tax expense:

Effect of:

Expenditure not deductible under Income Tax Act

Adjustment on account of scheme of arrangeement

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans

Provision no longer required written back
Other adjustments
Total

Adjustment for current tax of prior periods
Total expense as per statement of profit and loss

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(574.58) (503.38)
(33.29) 200.54
(607.87) (212.82)
{607.87) (212.82)
Year ended Year ended

March 31, zoz2

March 31, 2021

(2,535.99) (1,168.01)
(638.26) (203.97)
(2.99) {9.62)

- 313.17

(1.99) (61.74)
(167.25)

35.37 6.59
{607.87) {(212.82)
{607.87) (212.82)

The tax rate used for the reconciliations given above is the actual / enacted corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in

India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation (Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss)

Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

(7.90)

1.99

94.76

(23.85)
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Note 34: Income tax expense (Contd.)

(1) Deferred tax balances

(1) The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 41, 2021
Deferred tax assets 1,056,406 479.89
Deferred tax liabilities {257.25) {290.53)
709,21 189.35
(2) Movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Deferred tax assets / {liabilities) in relation to the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
Opening Recognised in profit  Recognised in OCI Closing
halance or loss balance
Property, plant and equipment - {290.54) 33.29 - - (257.25)
Expense allowable for tax purposes when paid B.41 (21,73} _ (13.30)
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 47.08 18.08 199 67,15
Unabsorbed Depreciation and brought forward .
loss 424.40 : 36145 ) 785.85
Provision for deubtful debts 216,70 - 216.76
180.35 607.87 1.99 799,21
(2) Movement of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) -
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2021
. Opening Recognisedin profit Recognised in OCIL Closing
balance or loss halance
Property, plant and equipment - (290.54) - {(290.54)
Expense allowable for tax purposes when paid - 8.41 - 8.41
Financial assets at fair value through profit or {0,08) 0.08 R -
loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans - 20,93 {23.85) 47.08
Unabsorbed Depreciation and brought forward 424.40 _
loss - 424.40
Preliminary Expense 0.44 {0.44) - 0.00
0.36 212,82 (23.85) 1890.35

The assessment of taxable income involved several key assumptions including expected demands and future prices of raw materials, which the management

considered reasonable based on past trends and likely future state of the industry.
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Note 35: Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

(a) Contingent liabilities

Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Disputed sales tax matters 428.75 428.75
Disputed excise duty matters 270.09 270,09
Disputed value added tax matters 42,13 4213
Disputed central sales tax matters 409.38 477.65
Claims against the Company ot acknowledged as debt 34.13 29.68

The Compay has evaluated the impact of Supreme Court (“s¢”) judgement dateéd February 28, 2019 in the case of regional provident fund commissioner (i) west
Bengal v/s Vivekananda Vidyamandir and others, in relation to exclusion of certain altowances from the definition of “hasic wages” of the relevant employees for the
purposes of determining contribution to provident fund (“pf*) under the employees’ provident fund & miscellanecus provisions aet, 1952. Theve ara interpretation
issues refating to the said s¢c judgement. based on such evaluation, management has concluded that effect of the aforesaid judgement on the company is not materia
and accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements.

(b) Capital and other commitments

. As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Estimated amount of eontracts remaining to be executed on capital aceount and not
provided for (net of advances)

Property, plant and equipment 22.23 -
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" Note 363 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

Miczo and smali enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) have been determined based on

the information available with the Company and the required disclosures are given below:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid {Refer notes 21 and 22] 442,62 127.69
(b) Interest due thereon - -
(c) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond - -
the appointed day during each accounting year
i) Principal amounts paid to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year 831.22 460.45
(i) Interest paid under section 16 of the MSMED Aet, to the suppliers, beyond the appointed day - -
during the year
{d) The amount of interest due and payable for the year {(where the principal has been paid but 5.59 4,71
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)
(e} The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid [b+d] 13.42 7.83
(f) "The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as ahove are actually paid to the smell enterprise, for the purpose of
disailowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.
Note 37: Lease liabilities
This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.
{I) Amounts recognised in balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Right-of-use assets
Particulars Note As at Asat
Masch 31, 2o22 March 31, 2021
Eand 5 770.84 858,04
Total r0.84 858.04
Lease Liabilities
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2022 Muarch 31, 2021
Current 100.82 125.47
Non-current 722.85 748.31
Total 823.67 873,78
(ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
. Asat Year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 32 88.10 22,02
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 31 66.29 17.07
Total i54.38 39.09
(iii) Maturitics of lease liabilities:
. . Non-current lease ) ——
As at March 31, 2022: liabilities Currvent lease liabilities
Less than 1 year - 116.40
Between 1 year and 5 years 500,51 -
5years and above 545.18 -
Total 1,045529 116.40

as at March 31, 2021:

Non-current lease

Current lease Habilities

Habilities
Less than 1 year - 116.40
Between 1 year and 5 years 500.51 -
5 years and above 661.57 -

Total

1,162.00
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Note 38: Employee benefit plans

38.1 Defined contribution plan
The Company has defined contribution retirement benefit plans for its employees.

The Company's contributions te provident fund, pension scheme and employee state insurance scheme are made to the relevant government authorities as
per the preseribed rules and regulations, The Company's superannuation scheme for qualifying employees is administered through its various superannuation
trust funds. The Company’s contributions to the above defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and
loss for the year in which they are due. The Company has no further ebligation in respect of such plans beyond the contributions made,

The Company's contributionto provident, peasion, superannuation funds and to employees state insurance scheme aggregating to Rs, 186.73 Lakhs (Previous
year -169.17 Lakhs) has been recognised in the staternent of profit and loss under the head employee benefits expense [Refer note 303
38.2 Defined benefit plans

{(a)  Gratuity
The Company operates through various gratuity trust, a plan, covering afl its employees. The benefit payable is the greater of the amount caleulated as per the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or the Company scheme applicable to the employee, The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and
once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity lienefits payable to the employess dre hased on the tenure
of employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these
benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting,

‘The Company makes annual contiibution to the gratuity schemes administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India through its various Gratuity Trust
Funds. The Hability in respect of plan is determired on the basis of an actuarial valuation.

(b}  Risk exposure to defined benefit plans
The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: asset volatility, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk as described below:

Asset volatility
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting petiod on Indian government securities; if the retun on plan asset is below this rate, it will ereate a plan deficit,

Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan lability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments,

Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plar liahility is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability,

?

Salary risk .
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the fisture salaries of plan participants. As such, an inerease in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present vatue of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at March 31, 2022, The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit eredit method.

{c) Significant assumptions
The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows,

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 7.17% 7.08%
Salary escalation rate 8.50% B8.50%

(d)  Theamount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

As at As at
Balances of defined henefit plan March 31, zo22 March 31, 2021
Present valte of funded defined benefit ohligation 884.23 794.41
Fair value of plan assets 741.86 722,82

Net liability [Refer note 24] 142.37 71.59
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Expected coatribiition to the plan for the next annual reporting period is Rs, 94.75 lakhs

Expenses recognised for defined benefit plan and movement of plan assets and liabilities
Following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss, other comprehensive income, movement in defined benefit liability and movement in
pian assets:

Funded plan- Gratuity

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:
Ohligation at the beginning of the year 794.41 -
Current service cost 47.30 43.96
Interest cost - - Iy . .. §6.22 52.95
Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes in demographic assumptions : : : 032 -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising changes in financial assumptions {6.37) (9.94)
Actuarial (gains) / losses from experience adjustments 10.18 {B5.66)
Transfer pursuant to scheme of arrangement (Refer note 49) - 764.14
Liability transferred in 10,52 55.66
Liability transferred ocut - -
Benefits paid directly by employer - -
Benefits paid {28.35) {26.70)
Obligation at the end of the year : ‘ o 884.23 c ~794.41
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets:
Plan assets at the beginning of the vear, at fair vaiue 722,82 -
Interest income 5117 48.60
Transfer pursuant to scheme of airangement {Refer note 49) - 701.35
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) (3.78) (0.84)
Contributions received - 041
Benefits paid (28.95) {26.70)
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value 741,86 722.82
Gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 47.30 43.96
Interest cost, net 505 4.35
Net gratuity cost recognized in the statement of profit and loss[Refer note 30] 52.35 48.31
Gratuity cost recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI)
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income) 3.78 0.84
Actuarial {gains) / losses 4,12 (05.50)
Net (income) / expense for the period recognized in OCI 7.90 (94.76)

Category wise plan assets
Contributions to fund the obligations under the gratuity plan are made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis given
below have been determined hased on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant.

Change in assumptions - As at Asat

March 31, 2022 March 31, zo21
Increase / (decrease) in defined henefit obligation of graiuity
50 basis points increase in discount rate (34.11) (31.75)
50 basis points decrease in discount rate 36.37 33.91
50 basis points increase in salary escalation rate 33.69 31.47
50 basis points decrease in salary escalation rate 31.90 (30.22)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been caiculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
balance sheet.

The Weightea average duration of the gratuity plan based on average furture service is 13 years.

]
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(1)) Cash flow projection from the fund

Funded Plan - Gratuity

o : | e | . Agat As at

Projected henefits payable in future years from the date of reporting March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1st following year 62.07 44.90
2nd following year 20,71 45.89
ard following year 64.34 24.29
4th following year B " 49.19 64.98
5th following year ) ) ) 61.91 " 45.01
sum of years 6 to 10™ 569.01 471.60

38.3 Otherlong-term employee henefit obligations
The leave obligation covers the Company's liability for earned leave. Under these compensated absences plans, leave encashment is payable to all eligible
enployees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement or resignation; at the rate of daily last drawn salary, multiplied by leave days

accumalated as at the end of velevant period. Refer notes 24 for the feave encashment provision / change in the balance sheet and statement of profit and
loss.

. e e . . . Year ended Year ended
Note 39: Auditor's remuneration (including taxes) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As auditor
Audit fees 3.50 0.50

3-50 Q.50
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Year ended Year ended

Note 40: Earnings per share March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Basic Earnings per share (in Rs.)* (12.46) {(47.76)
#There is no dilution to the Basic Earnings per Share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

Bastc (Loss)/Earnings per share
The (Loss)/Earnings and weighted average number of equity shaves used in the calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share are as

follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loss for the year used in caleulation of basic earning per share (Rs. in (1,928.12) {955.19)
lakhs) : i i ‘
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,54,79,452 20,00,000

Note 41: Operating segments

‘The Company's primary business segment is Manufacture of Cables, The Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) evaluates the
Company's performance and applies the resources to the Company's business of sales of cable and related sercives. Hence the Company
does not have any reportable segment as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segments",

The Company’s aperations are wholly confined within India and as such there is no reportable geographical informatien,
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Note 42: Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

1 Parent Company Torrent Power Limited
. Torrent Investments Private Limited
2 Ultimate parent company (Formerly known as Torrent Private Limited)

Subsidiary of Ultimate | ¥orrent Pharmacenticals Limited
parent company#

Yarun Mehta
4 Non-executive divectors  {Jayesh Desal

# where transactions have taken place during the year
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Naote 42: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

Related party transactions

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Nature of transactions

Torrent Power Limited

Sale of cables* 17,702.59 9,537.56
Cable Lying Service* 253.68 -
Loan Received 14,825.00 22,247.16
Loan Repaid 13,650.00 676.91
Interest on loan 1,749.11 361.59
Consideration paid pursuant to scheme of arrangement (Refer Note 49) - 25,695.00
Lease rent* 137.35 28,61
Security Deposit for lease 10.00 -
Tiansfer of Gratuity to /from 5.51 -
Transfer of Leave Liability to/from 2,57 -
Bank giarantee / LCissued 2,420.35 2,903.02
Equity coniribution 4,000.00 -
Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited

Sale of cables* 7.81 -
Transfer of Gratuity to /from 5.01 -
Transfer of Leave Liability to/from 2.58 -

* Tnclusive of goods and service tax.
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Note 42: Related party disclosures (Contd.)

Related party balances

Particulars As ol As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balances at the end of the year

TForrent Power Limited

Interest acerued on loan 376.91 334.47

Loan Quistanding 22.745.26 : 21,570.26

Trade receivables 4,898.55 3,425

Corporate guarantee given 5,012.68 5,231.26

Security Deposit for lease B . 10.00 -

Torrent Pharmaceuticals Limited

Trade receivables 99.79 -
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Note 43: Financial instrauments and risk review

{(a) Capital management
The Company manages its capital structure in a manner to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while optimising the return to
stakeholders through the appropriate debt and equity balance.

The Company's capitat structure is represented by equity (comprising issued capital, retained earnings and other reserves as detailed in notes 18,19) and
debt (borrowings as detailed in note 20).

Gearing ratio
T N Lo Asat As at
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period is as follows. March 31, 2022 March 31; 2021
Debt 22.745.26 21,570.26
Total equity {143.58) (1,604.78)
Debt to equity ratio (158.42) (13.44)
Notes:

1 Debt is defined as all long term debt outstanding

2 Total equity is defined as equity share capital + all reserve + deferred tax liabilities — deferred tax assets — intangible assets

. sy As at Asg at
(b) Categories of financial instruments March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost -
Cash and cash equivalents 410.52 410,52 473.33 373.33
Bank halance other than eash and cash 213.23 213.23 190.77 190.77
equivalents
Trade receivables 11,002.97 11,002.97 10,604.21 10,904.21
Loans 6.13 6.13 1.29 1.29
Other financial assets 266.84 260.84 260.30 260.30
11,899.69 11,869.69 11,720.90 11,729.90
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 22,745.26 22,%45.26 21,570.26 21,570.26
Lease Liabilities 823.67 823,67 873.78 873.78
Trade payables 3,586.02 3,586.02 2,381.09 2,381.09
Other financial liabilities 598.07 598.07 509.84 500,94
27,753.02 27,753.02 25,334.97 25,334.97

(¢) Fair value measurement

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that ave either observable
or unobservable and eonsists of the following three levels:

Inputs are Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This
Level 1: includes quoted equity instruments, investments in mutual funds that have quoted price.

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
Level 2 ¢ . directly or indirectly observable. This includes unguoted floating and fixed rate borrowing,

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable, This includes unquoted equity shares, loans, security deposits, investments in Debentures,

Level g floating rate borrowings.
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{d) Financial risk management objectives
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of thess financial
Habilities is to finance the Company's operations, routine and projeets eapital expenditure. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans,
advances, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive diveeily from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks viz foreign currency risk, eommodity price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk ete. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictahility of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its
financial performance. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks, It advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. . .

Inferest rate risk
Most of the Company’s borrowings are on a floating rate of interest.
The following table provides & break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As at 7 _ As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Floating rate borrowings _ 22,745.26 21,570.26
£22,745.26 21,570.26

Interest rate risk sensitivity:

The below mentioned sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate borrowings. For this it is assumed that the amount of
the floating rate liability ouistanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year, If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher or lower, other variables being held constant, following is the impact on profit before tax .

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Impact on profit before tax - increase in 50 basis points (113.73) (107.85)
Impact on profit before tax - decrease in 50 basis points 113.73 107.85

Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from various cirrency exposures, primatily with respect to the USD. Foreign currency risks
arise from future commetcial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities, when they are denominated in a currency other than Indian Rupee,

The Company’s exposure with regards to foreign currency risk which are not hedged are given below. However, these risks are not significant to the
company's operation and accordingly sensitivity analysis is not given,

Unhedged foreign currency exposures:

As at As at

Nature of transactions Currency March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial liahilities
Trade payable ush 577,088 2,71,575
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Creditrisk

Trade receivables:

Exposures to credit risk

The Company is exposed to the counterparty credit risk arising from the possibility that counterparties (primarily trade receivables, suppliets,
contractors ete.) might fail to comply with contractual obligations, This exposure may arise with regard to unsettled amounts and the cost of substituting
products and services that are not provided.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is managed and 11m1ted in accordance with the type of nansactmn and the ctedltworthmess of the counterparty. The Company has
established criteria for admission, approval systems, authorisation levels, exposure measurement methodologies, ete. The concentration of er edit risk is
limited due to the fact that the customer base is large. None of the customers accounted for more than 10% of the receivables and revenue for the year
ended March 41, 2022 and March 31, 2021, However, the Company is dependent on the domestic market for its business and reventres.

The Company's credit policies and practices with respect to distribution areas are designed to limit credit exposure by colleeting security deposits prior
to providing utility services or after utilify service has commenced according to applicable regulatory requirements. In respect to generation business,
Company generally has letter of credits / bank guarantees to limit its credit expesure.

Other credit enhancements
The Company does nat hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Age of receivables and expected credit loss

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix, The
provision matrix takes into account historical eredit loss experienced and adjusted for forward- looking information. The expected credit loss allowance
is based on ageing of the days the receivables are due.

The age of receivables and provision matvix at the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Asat Gross trade Allowance for
March 31, 2022 : receivables doubtful Debt
Less than or equal to 6 months 10,001.53 -
More than 6 months but less than or equal to 1 year 470.99 1.65
More than one year 1,491.72 859.62
11,864.24 861.27
As at Gross trade Allowance for
March 31, 2021 receivables doubtful Debt
Less than or equal to 6 months : 9,378.73 -
Mare than 6 months bitt less than or equal to 1 year 313.31 -
More than one year 1,212,17 -

10,904.21 -
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Note 43: Financial instruments and risk review (Contd.)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Compaty will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are required to be
settled by delivering the cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and unused
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring projected / actual cash flows.

Maturities of financial liabilities;

The Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial labilities with agreed repayment periods is given below. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest (acerued upto March 31, 2022) and principal cash flows, The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may

be required to pay,

As at March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

Non cwrrent financial liabilities

Borrowings

Interest On Borrowing

Lease liabilities

Current financiat liahilities

Lease liahilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2021

Financial liabilites

Non eurrent financial Habilities

Borrowings

Interest On Borrowing

Lease liabilities

Current financial liabilities

Borrowings
Lease labilities
Trade payables

Other financial labilities

Total financial liabilities

Between  year

Less than 1 year and 5 years 5 years and above Total

- 4,549.05 18,196.21 22,745.26
1,762.76 6,889.44 2,879.17 11,531.37

- 500.51 54518 1,045.69
1,762,76 11,939.00 21,620.56 35,322.32
116.40 116,40
3,586.02 - - 3,586.02
598.07 : - 598.07
4,300.49 - - ) 4,300.49
6,063.25 11,939.00 21,620.56 39,622,.81

Less than 1 year Between 1 year 5 years and above Total
and 5 years

- - 21,570.26 21,570.26
1,671.70 6,686.78 4,249.89 12,608.37

- 500.51 66157 1,162.08
1,671.70 7,187.29 26,481.72 35,340.70
334.48 - - 334.48
116.40 116,40
2,a81.09 - - 2,381.09
509.84 - - 509.84
3:341.81 - - 2,341.81
5,013.51 +,187.29 26,481.72 38,082.51




TCL Cables Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Rs, in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 44: Ageing schedule for capital work-in-progress

(a) For Tangible capital-work-in progress:

(i) Ageing table for capital-work-in-progress (CWIP):

Amount in CWIP for a period of March 31, 2022

Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 23 years More than 3 Total
year , years
Projects in progress 13.45 - - - i3.45
Total 13.45 - - - 13.45

Amount in CWIP for a period of March 31, 2021

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3

- . - y Total
year 1-2 years 2-3 years years ot

Projects in progress - - - - -

Total - - - - . -




TCIL Cables Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Ali amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless othenwise specified)

Note 45: Ageing schedule for Trade Receivables

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of pﬂvmeﬁt

Less than 6 6 months -1 ; . . More than 3 .
Not due months year 1-2 years 2-3 years vears Total
Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered good 9,912.60 87.03 369.34 370.36 183.73 69.00 $1,002,97
- credit impaired - - 1.65 92,10 213.13 554.39 861,27
Total 9,013.60 87.03 370.99 471,46 396.86 623.39 11,804.24
As at March 31, 2021 ,
. Ouatstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 More than 3
Not due months year 1-2 years 2-3 years vears Totai
Undisputed Trade receivables 5.830.98 3,547.75 313.31 445.06 238.45 528,66 10,604.21
- considered good -
Total 5,830.08 2,547.75 313.3¢2 445.06 238.45 528,60 10,904.21
Note 46: Ageing schedule for Trade Payables
(b) Currentirade payables:
As at March 31, 2022
Particulacs Outstandm{;e t;:rﬂfl(;llllo:nng periods from due date of pa: I‘;:nt i
Unbilled Not due 1-2 years 2-3 years ore fhan 3 Totalk
year years
Undisputed dues
- MSME. 336.61 - - 336.61
- Others 1,313.39 1,901.56 27.85 0.42 3.64 2.55 3:249.41
Total 1,313.39 2, 238,17 27.85 0.42 3.64 2.55 3,586.01
As at March 31, 2021
Particulars C)ut.si{‘andmfe fm'ﬂt;ollo:mlg peviods from due date of pavu]::nt <
Unbilled Not due Ss then 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than 3 Total
year years
Undisputed dues
- MSME - 125.96 173 - - - 127,69
- Others 340.88 1,795.89 102.99 12,40 1.84 - 2,253.40
Taotal 340.88 1,921,85 104.12 12,40 1,84 - 2.981.00




"7CL Cobles Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 47! Finanelal Ratos

Particuiars Asat As at Variance (%) Remarks for vadiation more than 25%
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
fa) Current Ratie 443 5.16 -14.10% -
{b) Deht-Equity Ratic {158.42) (13.44) 1078.57% Previous year debl was cutstanding for 3 months

only as first time debt taken by Company and in
cirrent year for 12 months, hence ratio is not
comperable

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio {0.00) (0.3} -96.36% Previous year debt was outstanding for 3 months
only as first time debt taken by Company and in
carrent year for t2 months, hence ratio is not

comperable
(d) Return on Equity Ratia 2.21 0.63 248.11% Tnfusion of equity resulted increase in ratio
(e) Tnventory tarnover Ratio 5.55 38 45.56% Increase in sales in current year as compare to
previous year which was impacted by Covid-1g
(f) Trade Receivables turover Ratio o g8 223 83.26% Increase in sales in current yearas compare to
previous year which was impacted by Covid-19
(g) Trade Payables turnover Ratio 12.91 8.50 51.80% Incereass in oulstanding payables due to
increase in purchase
(h) Net capital ternover Ratic . 2.51 165 51.94% Increase in sales in current year as compare to

previous year which was impacted by Cavid-19

(i) Net profit Ratio {0.04) (0.04) 6.65% -

(i) Return on Capital employed 0.00 {0.00) ~283.17% Increase in losses due to provision for doubtful
: : - : : E : - debts mads during the current year =

(k) Return on investment 459 0.46 896.31% Infusion of equity resutted increase in ratio

Explanations to items included in computing the above ratios:

{a) Current Rato Numerator Current Assets
Denominator Current Liabitites

Current Liabilites = Current liabilities

(b) Deht-Equity Ratia Nurnerator Total Deht
Dencminator Shareholder's Equity

Total Debt = All long term debt outstanding

Shareholder’s Equity = Equity share capital + all reserves + deferred tox linbilities — deferred tax assets — Intangible assets

{(c) Debt Service Caverage Ratio Numerator Profit after tax + Deferred tax +
Depreciation and amortisation + Interest
on debt

Benominator Principai repayment of debt+ Interest on
deht + Lease payment

{d) Return on Equity Ratio Numerator Profit for the yeaWr

Denominator Average Shareholder’s Equity i.e. (Share

Capital +Reserves and surplus + Deferred
Tax liability (net) - Deferred Tax assets

(net))
(&) Inventory turnover Rato Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominator Average inventories
(f} Trade Receivables turnover Ratio Numerator Revenue from operations
Derominator Average trade receivables
(g) Trade Payables turnover Ratio Numerator Cost of materials consumed + Purchase of

stock-in-trade + Changes in inventories of
finished goods and work-in-progress +
Consumption of stoces and spares -

Denominator Average trade payables
(h) Net capital turnover Ratlo Numerator Revenue from operations
Denominatar Cutrent assets - Current Linbilities
(i) Netprofit Ratio Numerator Profit after tax
Denomirator Revenue from operations
{j) Return on Capital employed Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Denominator Share Capital + Reserves and surplus +

Deferred Tax liability (net) - Deferred Tax
assets (net) + All long texm debt

outsiandiag
(k) Return on inveshment Numerator Profit hefore exceptional items and tax +
Finance costs
Denominater Share Capitzl + Reserves and surplus +

] Deferred Tax liability (net) - Deferred Tax
! assets {net) + All leng tern: debt
‘ outstanding




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Nates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts In Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 48; Additional Regulatory Information as required by Schedule ITT

a}

b)
c}
d}

e)

g

)

i)

3]

m)
n)
o)

No proceedings have been initiated on or ave pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Besami Property Transactions
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prahihition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended
March 31, 2022 and Mareh 31, 2021,

There are no revaluation made during the current year or previous year for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset.
The Company has not obtained the borrowings from banks and finrancial institutions during the current YEar or previcus year.
There are no immovable property whose title deed is not held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advance in nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and other related parties (as defined under Companies Act,
2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

The Company has not obtained borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and accordingly there is no requirement
of submitting the quarterly returns or statements of eurrent assets.

The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institation or government or any government authorvity during the year ended
March 31, 2022 and March a1, 2021.

There are no charges or satisfactions which were to be registered with the Registrar of Companies during the year ended March a1, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

The Company is in compliance with number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
mumber of Layers) Rules, 2017 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013
during the year ended Mareh 31, 2022 and in previous year the Company has entered into scheme of arrangement (refer not 49).

i} During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds {either borrowed funds or share
premium or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

blprovide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

ii) During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

ajdirectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b)provide any guarantes, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books
of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961),

Provision of section 135 of the act are not applicable to the company.

The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtuat Currency during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 41, 2021,

The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or seetion 560 of the Companies Act,
1956 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(AN amounts in Rs. in Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 49: Scheme of Arrangement

The National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) vide its Order dated December 17, 2020, has sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement ("the Scheme") for transfer
and vesting of Cable Business Undertaking ("CBU") of Torrent Power Limited {(Holding Company), on a going concern basis by way of slump sate, to the
Company, under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The certified copy of the said order has been filed with
Registrar of Companies on January 15, 2021 ("Effective Date") and the Scheme is legally effective from April 01, 2020 {"Appointed Date"). Accordingly, the effect
of the Scheme has been given in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 with effect from the Appointed Date.

The CBU had a bool value {net of related liabilities) of Re. 24,968 lakhs (Refer point (b) below) which has been transferred under the Schemte for a lump sum
consideration of Rs. 25,695 lakhs based on the report of independent valuer, adjusted for working capital adjustments as per the Scheme. The difference between
* consideration and net book valtié of assets Rs. 7,27 lakhs has heeii shown as "Capital Reserve" undeithe head "Other Equity" for the fidancial year ended March

31, 2021,
(a) Capital Reserve on account of Scheme of Arrangement

) Amount
Net agsets acquired 24,068.00
Cash congideration paid 25,695.00
Capital Reserve on account of Scheme of Arrangement (727.00)

(b) Summary of net asseis acqﬁired by the Company aé at tﬁe Appointed Date, in terms 6f Scheme ofArrangemeﬁt:

As at
April o1, 2020

Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 5,058.00
Right-of-uge assets -
Capital work-in-progress -

Intangible assets 10.00
Intangible assets under development -
Financial assets
Investments ) -
Loans . B 7+ 106.00
Other financial assets : % 3.00
Non-current tax assets (net) o [
Other non-current assets T 860,00
Current assets i
Inventories 2 6,127.00
Financial assets L
Investments -
Trade receivables 15,622.00
Cash and cash equivalents 34,00
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 189.00
Loans 111.00
Other financial assets 17.00
Qther current asgsets 407.00
Total Assets (A) 28,044.00
Nen-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrawings -
‘Trade pavables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises -

Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises -

Other financial liabilities : -
Provisions 218.00

Deferred tax liabilities (net) -

Other non-current liabilities . -

Cuyrent liabilities
Financial liabilities ]
Borrowings u
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 91,00
Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 1,717.00
Other financial liabilities 510.00
Other current liabilities 440.00
Provisions ; : 100.00

Total Liabilities (B) 3,076.00

Book value (net of related liabilities) (A-B) 24,968.00




TCL CABLES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs. In Lakhs, unless otherwise specified)

Note 50: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Credit balance of customer (Refer Note 23)

Particulars As at Asat
March 21, 2022 March 41, 2021
Opening Balance 79.25 -
Add / {less) : Adjustment to curvent billing (net) 303.85 - 70,25
Closing Balance . ) - 383.10 79.25
Note 51:

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped / recast, wheraver necessary, to make them comparable with the figures for the current year,

Note 52; Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 09, 2022.

Signature to Note 1 to 52 forming part of the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss.
In terms of our report attached

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number : 012754N / N500016

Viren Shah Jayesh Desai Varun Mehta Nandish Joshi
Partner Chairperson Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 046521 DIN : 02295309 DIN : 07862034

Place: Ahmedabad
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